PLANNING AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT POLICY ADVISORY GROUP

Meeting 13 September 2018

Present: J Read (Chairman)

M Lewis and G Sandy

Also Present: R Bagge

107. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

None

108. MINUTES

The minutes of the Planning and Economic Development PAG held on 11 June 2018 were approved.

109. **DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST**

None

110. REPORT FROM MEMBERS

The Portfolio Holder advised Members that staff had been recruited to the following posts:

Planning Enforcement Manager Principal Economic Development Officer Economic Development Officer

The Planning Enforcement Manager was due to be in post from Monday 17 September 2018.

111. CURRENT ISSUES

None

112. DELEGATION ARRANGEMENTS IN PLANNING ENFORCEMENT

Members considered a report proposing changes to the delegation arrangements on Planning Enforcement matters, taking into account the approval of the Local Enforcement Plan at the Cabinet meeting on 17 April 2018. The revised delegations would provide a mechanism for effective delivery of the plan in allowing officers to act in a timely manner on all enforcement matters and not just in cases of urgency. It was noted that the recommendations would also be considered at meetings of the Planning Committee and Cabinet.

The proposed changes were in tracked changes in the Appendix.

Following advice from the Policy Advisory Group, the Portfolio Holder **RESOLVED** to **RECOMMEND to Cabinet**

That the revised delegations as set out in the Appendix to the report be agreed and recommended to Full Council for approval.

113. THE ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT OF PLANS AND PROGRAMMES REGULATIONS 2004 – DELEGATED POWERS

Members considered a Cabinet report seeking delegated authority to determine the need for environmental assessment of neighbourhood plans.

Local authorities are required to undertake environmental assessments for neighbourhood plans within their area. It was noted that this work was largely a technical exercise. The recommendation would allow the Head of Planning and Economic Development to make an environmental determination decision in a timely manner, in the timeframe set out within the regulations.

An amendment was made to the recommendation to include that the delegation be in consultation with the Portfolio Holder for Planning and Economic Development.

Following the advice of the PAG, the Portfolio Holder **RESOLVED** to **RECOMMEND to Cabinet**

That the statutory requirements of the Environmental Assessment of Plans and Programmes Regulations 2004 in relation to neighbourhood planning be delegated to the Head of Planning and Economic Development in consultation with the Portfolio Holder for Planning and Economic Development.

114. COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE LEVY

Members considered a Cabinet report on the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) preliminary draft charging schedule. Members noted that this was a proposed charge on all new residential units of 100 square metres or more. The purpose of the charge was to ensure that contributions from new developments go towards improving infrastructure and supporting growth within the district.

It was advised that the consultation on the preliminary draft charge schedule was likely to be for 6 weeks in November – December 2018.

Members enquired as to what impact CIL would have on the viability and growth of the area, and were advised that contributions collected under CIL would create a revenue stream for the Council to invest in infrastructure to reflect the changing needs of local residents. By way of example, contributions could go towards a new school, fixing a junction, or improving/ maintaining community centre facilities.

It was noted that affordable housing and charitable units would not pay CIL.

It was expected that CIL would be adopted in summer 2020 alongside the Joint Local Plan.

Following consultation with the PAG, the Portfolio Holder **RESOLVED** to **RECOMMEND that Cabinet**

agree to consult on Community Infrastructure Levy Preliminary Draft Charging Schedule.

115. PLANNING SERVICE UPDATE

Members received an update on the Planning Service at item 10 on the agenda.

The Head of Planning and Economic Development informed Members that the computer system for the new Joint Planning Service was implemented by the Interim Head of Planning and Economic Development. The exemplary planning service action plan was being reviewed continuously, and it was noted that good progress had been made by the Interim Enforcement Manager, which was expected to continue under the new Enforcement Manager.

The Portfolio Holder thanked the Planning Team for their hard work to bring the services together.

It was noted that the PAG would receive a further update on the progress of the implementation of an exemplary Planning Service in 6 months.

RESOLVED:

That the report be noted.

116. ENFORCEMENT UPDATE

Members received a verbal update on enforcement matters at item 11 on the meeting agenda.

It was noted that the new Enforcement Manager was due to start on 17 September 2018. Members were advised that good progress had been made recently relating to the serving of notices. The level of engagement with residents and stakeholders had greatly improved in the last month.

The Head of Planning and Economic Development expressed thanks to the Legal Team for their hard work.

117. UPDATE ON THE S106 REVIEW

Members of the PAG considered an update report on the current position in respect of S106 agreements that include a developer contribution or schedule of works, as well as the method proposed for implementing processes to ensure effective S106 monitoring in the future.

The PAG were informed that a new post had been created whose primary role would be to monitor CIL and S106 contributions to ensure that monitoring if efficient and effective.

Councillor R Bagge left the meeting at 18:50

RESOLVED:

That the report be noted.

118. **HEATHROW UPDATE REPORT**

Members noted that information relating to this update report was not available prior to agenda publication, and therefore the report was circulated to Members of the PAG as a supplementary agenda item.

The PAG were informed that on 5 June 2018, government ministers indicated their support for the Heathrow expansion plan. The report set out the mitigation the Council is seeking from Heathrow.

There was an amendment to the wording of the second recommendation to read: 'to consider whether South Bucks District Council wishes to provide support to the HAL expansion proposals'

Councillor G Sandy left the meeting at 18:56.

Following advice of the PAG, the Portfolio Holder **RESOLVED** to **RECOMMEND that Cabinet**

- 1. note the government's position in regards to Heathrow Airport Limited (HAL) expansion proposals, the Council's position towards this, and the areas the Council is seeking mitigation and opportunities from HAL;
- 2. noting the above, and on balance, if the local benefits are realised, to consider whether South Bucks District Council wishes to provide support to the HAL expansion proposals; and
- 3. that the Council invite HAL to continue to actively work with officers at all levels to ensure that the potential benefits to the district are realised.

119. EXEMPT INFORMATION

RESOLVED that under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972 the following item(s) of business is not for publication to the press or public on the grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Act.

120. **HS2 UPDATE REPORT**

Members received an update on the HS2 project. It was noted that HS2 had declared that stage 2 would now commence in June 2019.

RESOLVED:

1. that the report and progress made on the project be noted.

And to RECOMMEND that Cabinet agree:

- (i) the functions for the determination of any submissions pursuant to Schedule 17 of the HS2 Act be delegated to the Head of Planning and Economic Development. In the absence of the Head of Planning an Economic Development, that these functions be delegated to the Development Management Manager and/or an Area Team Leader under Regulation 3 of the Local Authorities Arrangements for the Discharge of Functions Regulations 2012 and the delegations and Constitution are updated accordingly;
- (ii) the functions for the determination of any submission pursuant to

conditions attached to any Schedule 17 approval that have been imposed by the Local Planning Authority be delegated to the Head of Planning and Economic Development. In the absence of the Head of Planning an Economic Development, that these functions be delegated to the Development Management Manager and/or an Area Team Leader and/or a Principal Planning Officer under Regulation 3 of the Local Authorities Arrangements for the Discharge of Functions Regulations 2012 and the delegations and Constitution are updated accordingly; and

(iii) the functions for the determination of any request for non-material changes to approvals under paragraph 21 of Part 3 of Schedule 17 of the HS2 Act be delegated to the Head of Planning and Economic Development. In the absence of the Head of Planning an Economic Development, that these functions be delegated to the Development Management Manager and/or an Area Team Leader and/or a Principal Planning Officer under Regulation 3 of the Local Authorities Arrangements for the Discharge of Functions Regulations 2012 and the delegations and Constitution are updated accordingly.

The meeting terminated at 7.08 pm